"有了他就是你能心理我的

COLLAPSE, BUCKLING AND POST FAILURE BEHAVIOR OF CYLINDRICAL SHELLS UNDER ELEVATED TEMPERATURE AND DYNAMIC LOADS

Joshua E. Greenspon, Dr. Eng.

• 1701 . . · · D = 2.00 0,50 44 as

Code 1

Ballistic Research Laboratories Aberdeen Proving Ground Contract No. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) Tech. Rep. No. 6 November, 1965

Reproduction in whole or in part is permitted for any purpose of the United States Government.

J G ENGINEERING RESEARCH ASSOCIATES 3831 MENLO DRIVE

BALTIMORE 15, MARYLAND

ABSTRACT

It has been shown experimentally that cylindrical shells subjected to side on air blast will go into two main types of failure. These are buckling and collapse. The buckling type of failure is described by a deformation pattern which consists of a number of lobes around the periphery of the shell and one half wave length along the length. The collapse is described by a straight failure hinge. The type of failure will depend upon the geometry of the shell and can be predicted from an elastic stress and buckling analysis of the shell as discussed in this The analytical details of representing the deformation patterns report. and the method for calculating the energy absorbed and the resulting deflection under normal and elevated temperature conditions due to a given loading is described completely in this report. In addition to energy and impulse methods of solving the problem a deformation type variational principle is employed to set up the governing nonlinear differential equation for the time dependent deflection in the plastic region. The biaxial stress strain law used for both the normal and elevated temperature cases is an elastic linear hardening law.

Of greatest importance in the report is the computation of the energy absorbed or work done by internal forces in the shell for very large plastic deformations. This work or energy car be used to compute the impulse to give a prescribed deformation; it can be used to compute the deformation for a given energy input to the shell (assuming all of it goes into plastic deformation); it can be used to compute static load for a given deformation; or it can be used as a design criterion itself.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

List of Symbols
I. Introduction
A. General 1
B. Objective of Work, Definition of Problem, and
Philosophy behind Method of Approach
C. Physical Arguments backing up Method of Approach 3
II. Theory
A. Plastic Energy Absorbtion Relations 4
B. Extension to Thermoplastic Deformation 8
C. Impulse-Energy Relation 9
D. Approximation to Energy Flux delivered from Explosion-10
E. Approximate Pressure Distribution and Impulse
delivered to shell from blast 11
F. Simplifications in the Energy Expression
III. Elastic Analysis
A. Buckling
B. Yield or Collapse $$
C. The Criterion for Buckling or Yield 14
<pre>IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General 15 B. Axisymmetrical Collapse 15 C. Nonaxisymmetric Buckling and Collapse 17</pre>
IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General
<pre>IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General</pre>
<pre>IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General</pre>
<pre>IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General</pre>
 IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General- B. Axisymmetrical Collapse- C. Nonaxisymmetric Buckling and Collapse- C. Nonaxisymmetric Collapse and Buckling A. Collapse- C. Energy Expression from Numerical Integration of the
 IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General- B. Axisymmetrical Collapse- C. Nonaxisymmetric Buckling and Collapse- C. Nonaxisymmetric Buckling and Collapse- C. Post Failure Nonaxisymmetric Collapse and Buckling A. Collapse- C. Energy Expression from Numerical Integration of the General Integrals using First Buckling Approximation-
 IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General
 IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General
IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General
 IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General
 IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General
IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General
<pre>IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General</pre>
<pre>IV. Initial Plastic Analysis A. General</pre>

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This work was done under the sponsorship of Ballistic Research Laboratories at Aberdeen Proving Ground. The technical supervisors of the project were Mr. O. T. Johnson and Dr. W. Schuman. The author is grateful to these gentlemen for their guidance during the progress of this work. The numerical integration was programmed by Mr. Clyde Hauff of BRL. The author would like to express his appreciation to Mr. Hauff for his splendid cooperation.

LIST OF SYMBOLS

 $\begin{aligned}
\overline{O_i} &= \frac{\sqrt{2}}{2} \sqrt{\left(\overline{O_x} - \overline{O_y}\right)^2 + \left(\overline{O_y} - \overline{O_x}\right)^2 + \left(\overline{O_2} - \overline{O_x}\right)^2 + 6\left(\overline{\mathcal{I}_{xy}}^2 + \overline{\mathcal{I}_{yx}}^2 + \overline{\mathcal{I}_{yx}}^2\right)} \\
&\quad (\text{Octahedral shear stress is } \sqrt{2}/2 \overline{O_i})
\end{aligned}$ $e_{i} = \frac{\sqrt{2}}{3} \sqrt{(E_{2} - E_{y})^{2} + (E_{y} - E_{z})^{2} + (E_{z} - E_{z})^{2} + \frac{3}{2} (E_{y} + E_{y} + E_{z})^{2}}$ Oz, Gy, Oz, Try, Tyr, Ten six components of stress; σ_s are direct stresses - $\gamma'_{\mathcal{S}}$ are shear stresses Ex, Ey, Ez, day, Jyz, daz six components of strain; E's are direct strains - d's are shear strains $\theta = \epsilon_{k} + \epsilon_{j} + \epsilon_{k}$ bulk modulus of material T 5 volume of the body $\epsilon_{1,\epsilon_{1}}$ strains in the midplane of the shell z radial distance from the midplane of the shell to any element in the shell zd cylindrical coordinates describing the position of the element along the length (\varkappa) and around the periphery (ϕ) = ad 7 a radius of the midplane of the shell (mean radius of the shell) and twisting of the shell element un displacements of the shell element; U longitudinal, N tangential, 🚧 radial E modulus of elasticity of shell material ょ Poisson's ratio for shell material (assumed ½ for plastic region) $\omega(\mathbf{e}_i)$ function of \mathbf{e}_i strain at which yielding in pure tension would occur C. $\sigma_{\rm s}$ Yield stress in pure tension parameter involved in the plastic-linear hardening stress strain X law; it is the slope of the $\sigma_i - e_i$ curve in the plastic region -ii-

t	thickness of the shell
2	length of the shell
V	work done in deforming shell
dm	element of mass
iv	velocity of mass in radial direction
I	impulse per unit mass
۶	mass density of shell material
Τ	initial kinetic energy put into shell by pressure pulse
I _t	total impulse
Mo	amplitude of w
No, Nr.	Nece stress resultants
f,ld),f_ld) fq(d)	, f₃(a) arbitrary functions of \$ which are determined from the boundary conditions
prsd)	pressure distribution
ß	parameter used to lefine the peripheral pressure distribution
n	number of circumferential waves in buckling pattern
(po)c	pressure which initiates collapse
(ger).	pressure which initiates bucklong
f(x,7)	spatial distribution of the impulse
F(z;d)	spatial distribution of the deflection
* ' =	x/L
do	width of plastic hinge
1	parameter defining periphery die out of spatial deflection dis- tribution in buckling
P., P.	pressure parameters defining distribution of pressure such that $p + p$, is the pressure at $q = 0$
γ ·	$((\rho_0 + \rho_1))$
1) =	
V =	V JEAL
	-iii-

.

.

5

and the second second

÷

portion of the nondimensional energy function which arises when strain hardening is present (see eq. 19b and Figs.8,9a-9c)

portion of the nondimensional energy function which is present for both hardening and nonhardening cases; for a perfectly plastic material (λ =1) it is the only part of the function which remains (see eq. 19b and Figs.8,9a-9c)

 $(\overline{I}_{i})_{c}$ the value of \overline{I}_{i} for a collapse pattern $(\overline{I}_{i})_{B}$ the value of \overline{I}_{i} for a buckling pattern $(\overline{V}_{i})_{c}$ the value of \overline{V}_{i} for a collapse pattern

Ī,

V,

 $(\overline{\nabla})_{\mathbf{d}}$ the value of $\overline{\nabla}$ for a buckling pattern

-iv-

1. Introduction

A. General

Shell theory, especially the dynamic plasticity of shells, is in such a state at the present time that one can only hope to obtain approximate solutions to the problems that are of practical interest today. Very little work has been done on the dynamic plasticity of shells due in part to the mathematical complexities of the theory and probably due to the lack of experimental evidence with which to check the results of the theoretical developments. Fortunately the electronic compter will enable us to overcome some of the mathematical difficulties.

Extensive use is being made of cylindrical shells in missiles and submarines. Therefore more complete experiments are being conducted on these structures and more experimental evidence is becoming available to those working in the field of dynamic elasticity and plasticity. More theoretical development on this problem is needed and it is for this purpose that the present report has been written. This report contains an approximate method for predicting large elastic and plastic deformations of shells under static and dynamic loads.

Experiments have shown^{1,2} that cylindrical shells subjected to side on blast can go into two main types of failure. These are buckling and collapse. The buckling type of failure is described by a deformation pattern which consists of a number of lobes around the periphery of the shell and one half wave length along the length as shown in Figure 1a. Both of these figures are taken from Schuman's experimental results.^{1,2} The type of failure will depend upon the geometry of the shell and can be predicted from an elastic stress and buckling analysis of the shell as will be seen later in this report.

B. Objective of work, definition of problem and philosophy behind method of approach

. The main objective of this work is to predict the final plastic deformation of a cylindrical shell of given geometry at a given temperature exposed to a side on blast of predetermined charge weight exploded at a known distance from the shell. There are two facits to the problem; the first is to obtain the blast pressure parameters and the second is to determine the plastic response of the shell under dynamic loading. The plastic problem is a large deflection problem involving deformations which are many times the thickness of the shell; deflections which may be of the order of the radius of the shell. Furthermore the blast almost always occurs as a side on load so that the shock wave progresses at some angle to the longitudinal axis of the shell. This will induce a nonaxisymmetrical loading re-The shell has end supports and the distance between these sponse. supports can be small. Thus a deformation pattern will result which depends upon both the longitudinal and peripheral coordinates.

-1-

A complete solution of this problem would involve solving a set of large deformation shell equations subject to a yield condition and an appropriate stress strain law of the incremental type. A solution of the above type would involve a very great effort resulting in a very large computer program. Since the input parameters to the shell analysis us such as material properties and details of the loading can only be obtained to a very limited accuracy and errors accrue in numerical solution of large computer problems one might well ask the question whether the large amount of numerical effort necessary to solve particular cases using numerical techniques will give any more accuracy than rough approximations. In view of the above evaluation of the problem, it only seems plausible to attempt an approximate solution based on the simplified deformation theory of plasticity.

Let it be clear what assumptions are to be made in this theory and what are the basic ideas that are being proposed. Firstly it is being assumed that the plastic stress strain law of the material can be approximated by a deformation type law with linear hardening in which the octehedral shear stress is a unique function of the octehedral shear strain. Secondly, it is assumed that once collapse or buckling is reached then the entire shell is in the plastic region. In this theory it is assumed that as the shell is loaded it can either buckle or go into a collapse failure. Once the type of failure is determined it is assumed that the shell will continue in this type of failure pattern as it deforms plas-In order to determine whether collapse or buckling will occur tically. several methods are proposed. The simplest method is to use elastic membrane shell theory to calculate the load at which yielding starts to occur at the center of the shell -- this can be called the yield load ' which starts collapse. The buckling load can then be computed by classical elastic buckling theory. If the yield load is less than the buckling load the shell should collapse and if it is greater, the shell should buckle.

С.

A more sophisticated approach would be to compute the static collapse load with a given collapse pattern and compare this with the plastic static buckling loads if the collapse load is less than the buckling load collapse should occur and vice versa. Once it is determined which type of failure will occur from the above simplified analysis then the work done by the internal forces in deforming the shell plastically is computed by assuming either a collapse or buckling pattern as previously determined. In the determination of this plastic work it is assumed that only the lateral deformation (i.e. deformation perpendicular to the cylinder axis) is of significance and that the longitudinal and tangential displacements can be neglected.

Several criteria are presented for computing the deformation under the blast. One such criterion is to equate the change in kinetic energy of the shell to the work done by the internal forces during this change.

-2-

The change in kinetic energy is computed in terms of the impulse given to the shell. The result is an expression for the impulse which will result in a given deformation. A second criterion is to estimate the energy flux (energy/unit area) delivered to the shell from the blast and then equate the energy flux times the shell surface area to the work done by the internal forces. The result will be an approximate expression for the deformation in terms of the charge weight and distance from the explosion.

A third criterion is to employ Hamilton's principle in the plastic region, assuming a given collapse or buckling pattern. The result will be a differential equation for the lateral deformation as a function of time. For this calculation the pressure distribution must be known explicitly. The use of the Hamilton's principle with the work computed on the basis of deformation theory is. of course, open to question since there are more accurate variational principles for plasticity. However, if only loading is considered and we assume no elastic recovery after the maximum deformation is reached it should give a reasonable approximation. The assumption of no elastic recovery has been checked for plates under static loading¹⁷ and has been found to be a valid one.

C. Physical arguments backing up method of approach

The theory depends upon the assumption that the shell buckles or collapses and then continues deforming plastically in the same type a pattern. The accuracy of the computation of buckling and collapse loads does not seem critical as long as we can be sure which pattern will occur. In the plastic calculations the detailed assumption of a collapse pattern is not critical since it is determined by one parameter -- the length of the plastic hinge. However the buckling pattern is quite a bit more complicated since it depends upon the number of buckling lobes and the assumption of how rapidly the deformation dies out around the periphery as one proceeds from the front where the blast load first hits. An exponentially decaying cosine wave is assumed in one particular calculation but other types of patterns are possible. One other such pattern is discussed in this report and consists of a series of hinges around the periphery.

The assumption on the degree of decay around the periphery is guided by the experimental results. The number of lobes is computed from classical buckling theory and has been found to agree with experimental results. The deformation patterns which have been employed in the plastic theory are likewise based upon experimental results.

The major item of contention concerning the validity of this theory is the fact that a deformation (total) type stress-strain law has been used instead of a flow((incremental) law and that a linear hardening law has been used as an approximation to the real material law; and that the elevated temperature is assumed to decrease the hardening and decrease ' ' the yield point. The latter assumptions concerning elevated temperature

-3-

behavior have been demonstrated for one dimensional systems; it therefore seems plausible that the same type of behavior should hold true between the octohedral shear stress and strain for biaxial systems. If we are concerned with loading paths consisting of the first laoding and assume that there is no elastic recovery but that the shell remains permanently at its largest deformation (as was shown approximately for plates 17), it would seem plausible that a total strain theory should give reasonable results.

II. Theory

A. Plastic energy absorption relations

Assume that the shell is exposed to an impulsive load of short duration which imparts an initial velocity to the structure. The problem is the equivalent to one in which the structure has an initial kinetic energy.^{3,4} If no instabilities occur in the elastic region when the structure goes plastic there could be a plastic instability point. If instability does not occur at all and the structure is loaded further, then there will be a point at which the structute will collapse.

The deformation energy (or work done by the internal forces) per unit volume of an elastic-plastic body can be written:⁵

$$V = \int_{0}^{\infty} \frac{\sigma_{i} de_{i}}{\sigma_{i} de_{i}} + \frac{\kappa \sigma^{2}}{2}$$
^[1]

K = Bulk Modulus

[3]

$$\sigma_{i} = \frac{\sqrt{2}}{2} \sqrt{(\sigma_{x} - \sigma_{y})^{2} + (\sigma_{y} - \sigma_{z})^{2} + (\sigma_{z} - \sigma_{z})^{2} + 6(\mathcal{I}_{xy}^{2} + \mathcal{I}_{yz}^{2} + \mathcal{I}_{zz}^{2})}$$

$$e_{i} = \frac{\sqrt{2}}{3} \sqrt{(\epsilon_{x} - \epsilon_{y})^{2} + (\epsilon_{y} - \epsilon_{z})^{2} + (\epsilon_{z} - \epsilon_{z})^{2} + \frac{3}{4}(\delta_{xy}^{2} + \delta_{yz}^{2} + \delta_{zz}^{2})}$$

 $\theta = \epsilon_x + \epsilon_y + \epsilon_z$ where σ_z , σ_y , σ_z are the direct stresses, Z_{xy} , T_{yz} , Z_{2x} are the shear stresses, ϵ_z , ϵ_y , ϵ_z the direct strains and δ_{xy} , δ_{yz} , δ_{zz} the shear strains.

The curve of O_i vs e_i describes the stress-strain law of the material. Assuming an incompressible material ($\theta = 0$) and particularizing our analysis to a thin shell, we obtain

$$V = \int_{\Sigma} \left[\int_{0}^{\varepsilon_{i}} \sigma_{i} de_{i} \right] d\Sigma$$

$$\sigma_{i} = \sqrt{\sigma_{x}^{2} - \sigma_{x} \sigma_{y} + \sigma_{y}^{2} + 3 \tau_{xy}^{2}} , \quad e_{i} = \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \sqrt{\epsilon_{x}^{2} + \epsilon_{x} \epsilon_{y} + \epsilon_{y}^{2} + \frac{1}{4} \delta_{xy}^{2}}$$

$$[2]$$

The expressions for the strains are⁶

$$E_z = E_1 - 2K_1$$
, $E_y = E_2 - 2K_2$, $J_{xy} = -22Z$

where ϵ_{j} , ϵ_{j} , ϵ_{j} are the midsurface strains, Ξ is the radial distance from the midsurface to any element within the thickness of the shell and κ_{j} , κ_{L} , τ_{L} are the curvatures and twist. The values ϵ_{j} , ϵ_{L} , ϵ_{L} are (allowing large deflections)⁷

$$E_{1} = \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial w}{\partial x} \right)^{2} , \quad E_{2} = \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial v}{\partial q} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial w}{\partial q} \right)^{2} - \frac{1}{2}$$

$$F_{2} = \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial q} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial x} \frac{\partial w}{\partial q}$$

$$F_{2} = \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial q} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial x} \frac{\partial w}{\partial q}$$

$$F_{2} = \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial q} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial x} \frac{\partial w}{\partial q}$$

$$F_{2} = \frac{\partial v}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial q} + \frac{\partial w}{\partial x} \frac{\partial w}{\partial q}$$

and the curvatures and twist are

$$K_{1} = \frac{\partial^{2} \pi}{\partial z^{2}} , \quad K_{1} = \frac{\partial^{2} \pi}{\partial q^{2}} + \frac{\partial^{2} \pi}{\partial q^{2}} + \frac{\partial^{2} \pi}{\partial q}$$

$$Z = \frac{\partial^{2} \pi}{\partial x \partial q} + \frac{\partial^{2} \pi}{\partial x \partial x}$$

$$[5]$$

A general deformation type elastic-plastic stress-strain law can be written (assuming a Poissons ration of $\frac{1}{2}$)

$$\begin{aligned}
\sigma_{\mathbf{x}} &= \frac{4}{3} \underbrace{\sigma_{\mathbf{x}}}_{\mathbf{x}} \left(\boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{\mathbf{x}} + \frac{1}{2} \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{\mathbf{y}} \right) \\
\sigma_{\mathbf{y}} &= \frac{4}{3} \underbrace{\sigma_{\mathbf{x}}}_{\mathbf{x}} \left(\boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{\mathbf{y}} + \frac{1}{2} \boldsymbol{\epsilon}_{\mathbf{x}} \right) \\
\tau_{\mathbf{xy}} &= \frac{1}{3} \underbrace{\sigma_{\mathbf{x}}}_{\mathbf{x}} \delta_{\mathbf{xy}}
\end{aligned}$$
[6]

where

STREET STREET

$$\frac{1}{4i} = E \left[i - \omega (e_i) \right]$$
[7]

[9]

in which $\omega(e_i) = 0$ for the elastic region. Now neglect all terms in the strains which contain ω and $\sqrt{2}$, assuming that they are small compared to $\sqrt{2}$ and its derivatives. Then

Consider an <u>elastic-linear hardening incompressible</u> material which has a stress-strain law as shown in Figure 2. This stress-strain law can be written

Elastic Case
$$\omega(\mathcal{C}_i) = 0$$
 for $\mathcal{C}_i < \mathcal{C}_s$, $\sigma_i < \sigma_s$

Plastic Case $\omega(c_i) = \lambda(1 - c_s/e_i)$ for $c_i > c_s$, $\sigma_i > \sigma_s$ $\lambda = 1 - (1/e)(\frac{d\sigma_i}{de_i})$

$$\lambda = \frac{1}{2} \frac{1}{2}$$

Going back to the general expression for the energy, and substituting the stress-strain law of equ. [9]

$$V = \int_{0}^{L} \int_{0}^{2\pi} \int_{0}^{e_{i}} \left[Ee_{i} \left[1 - \lambda \left(1 - e_{s/e_{i}} \right) \right] de_{i} a dad_{z} dz$$
[10]

 $V = \int_{1}^{L} \int_{1}^{2\pi} \left[\frac{Ec_{i}}{2}(1-\lambda) + E\lambda c_{s} c_{i} \right] dq dz dz - \frac{E\lambda c_{s}}{2} 2\pi a Lt$ [11]

Substituting the expression for C_{c} from [2]

$$V = \int \int \left[\frac{1}{2} (1-\lambda) + \frac{1}{5} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{5}} 2\sqrt{5} \right] a d\phi d\lambda d\lambda - \frac{1}{2} - \frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{1}{5} \pi a Lt \right] = \frac{1}{5} \frac{1}{$$

Using the strain expressions [8] and integrating with respect to #

The strain terms in equation [8] which involve **are associated** with bending, the other terms are the membrane strains. For very thin shells sometimes the bending strains can be neglected and the resulting energy expression will be (neglecting the last term)

$$V \approx \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ \frac{2}{3} E(1-\lambda) \neq \alpha(x, d) + \frac{2\lambda E\ell_{s}}{\sqrt{3}} \neq \sqrt{\alpha(x, d)} \right\} = \alpha(\varphi) dx \quad [15]$$

Some materials can be considered perfectly plastic. For this case $\lambda = 1$ in the plastic region and

$$V_p \approx \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \int_{-\infty}^{\infty} \frac{2\lambda Ee_s}{\sqrt{3}} \pm \sqrt{\alpha(x,0)} a dc dx$$
 [16]

The energy of deformation in the elastic region can be obtained from [13] by letting $\lambda = 0$. However a more accurate expression for the elastic region can be obtained by starting with the elastic stress-strain law for any Pojsson ratio, i.e.

$$\sigma_{x} = \frac{E}{I-y^{\perp}} (\epsilon_{x} + y \epsilon_{y}) , \quad \sigma_{y} = \frac{E}{I-y^{\perp}} (\epsilon_{y} + y \epsilon_{x}) \quad [6a]$$

$$\mathcal{T}_{y} = \frac{E}{2(I+y)} \delta_{y}$$

[13a]

The elastic energy is

$$V_{e} = \frac{1}{2} \int_{\Sigma} \frac{E}{1-y^{2}} (E_{x}^{2} + 2) (E_{z} (E_{y} + E_{y}^{2} + \frac{1-y}{2}) dZ$$

Thus

 $V_{e} = \int_{a}^{b} \int_{2(i-y^{b})}^{E} \left[\pm \alpha_{e}(x, \phi) + \frac{t^{3}}{12} \beta_{e}(x, \phi) \right] a dx d\phi$

where

~ (x, d) = \$ (3) + \$ (2) (2) (2) -) (2) ~ + \$ (2) - 2 (2) + \$ = \$ = \$ (2) - 2 (2) ($A_{e}(x, q) = \left(\frac{2^{2}nr}{2x^{2}}\right)^{2} + \frac{2}{q^{2}} \cdot \frac{2^{2}nr}{2q^{2}} \cdot \frac{2^{2}nr}{q^{2}} + \frac{1}{q^{2}} \left(\frac{2^{2}nr}{2q^{2}}\right)^{2} + \frac{2(1-1)}{q^{2}} \left(\frac{2^{2}nr}{2q^{2}}\right)^{2}$

In some cases the deformation of the shell may be axisymmetric and the deflection μ will then be independent of φ . For this case expression [13] becomes

$$V = 2\pi \alpha \int \left\{ \frac{2}{3} E(i-\lambda) \left[t + \frac{t^2}{i\lambda} \beta \right] \right\}$$
where
$$+ \frac{2\lambda E C_s}{\sqrt{3}} \left[\frac{(2\beta + \lambda) \sqrt{4 + 2\beta + \frac{\lambda^2}{2\beta}\beta}}{4\beta} + \frac{4\alpha\beta - b^2}{4\alpha\beta} - b^2 \left[\frac{(2\beta + \lambda)}{4\beta} \right] \right] dx - E_{AC_s}^2 \pi a Lt$$

$$\alpha(x) = \frac{1}{4} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial x} \right)^4 - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\alpha}{\alpha} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial x} \right)^2 + \frac{4\alpha'}{\alpha} = \frac{\beta}{2} \left(\frac{\partial \lambda}{\partial x} \right)^2 - \frac{1}{2} \left[\frac{(2\beta + \lambda)}{2\beta} \right] \left[\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial x} \right]^2 + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial x} \right)^2 + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{\partial \alpha}{\partial$$

Now define a new variable x' = x/L and let $w = w_0 f(x', q)$ then the integrals can be written in terms of dimensionless quantities as follows:

We first combine the elastic and plastic cases in one set of integrals noting that:

a. For the elastic case 1=0

ショル b. For the plastic case

The combined integrals are then

$$V = \frac{E(1-\lambda)\tan \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{2\pi} \sqrt{2\pi} dd + \frac{E(1-\lambda)\tan \int_{0}^{1} \sqrt{3\pi}}{6(1-\lambda^{2})} \int_{0}^{2\pi} \sqrt{3} dx' dd \qquad [19]$$

$$+ \frac{\lambda Ee_{s} \tan \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{2\pi} \frac{(2\overline{\beta} + \overline{s})\sqrt{2\overline{z} + \overline{s} + \overline{\beta}}}{4\overline{\beta}} + \frac{(4\overline{a}\overline{\beta} - \overline{s}^{2})}{8\overline{\beta}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\sin (2\overline{\beta} + \overline{s})}{\sqrt{4\overline{a}\overline{\beta} - \overline{s}^{2}}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{\sqrt{4\overline{a}\overline{\beta} - \overline{s}^$$

$$\overline{x}(x, q) = \left(\frac{y}{2}\right)^{2} + \left(\frac{y}{2}\right)^{2$$

-EXC3 TALt

$$\begin{split} \overline{S}(x; d) &= \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2}\right)^{-1} \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{1}{2}\right)^{-1} \left(\frac{1}$$

-7-

Thus the integrals are dimensionless quantities which are functions of the dimensionless ratios $\sqrt[4]{4}$, $\sqrt[4]{2}$, $\frac{4}{2}a$. Equation [9] is the form that the electronic computer used to compute the integrals numerically for a given shape f(z', d'), given parameters $\sqrt[4]{4}$, $\frac{4}{2}a$

and a series of values of Mola

- B. Extension to thermoplastic deformation
 - 1. Employment of a bilinear stress-strain law

One dimensional thermoplastic tests have been conducted by Alder and Phillips¹⁸ and Bell^{19,20} some of the results of which are discussed in a book by Goldsmith.²¹ The effect of temperature on the stress-22 strain law is also discussed qualitatively by Rhinehart and Pearson. To this author's knowledge there have been no biaxial thermoplastic stress-strain tests to date. In fact the basic elements of thermoplasticity are just starting to be discussed in the literature.²³ Therefore any biaxial thermoplastic stress-strain law which is assumed will have to be based mostly upon intuition and partly upon extrapolation of the one dimensional tests. Based upon the above mentioned references it seems that the effect of temperature on the stressstrain law is to lower the yield stress, lower the elastic modulus and decrease the degree of hardening of the material. If a bilinear (elastic-linear hardening) stress-strain law is assumed for the room temperature case, then it seems logical to use the same type law for the thermal case with the degree of hardening decreased and the yield stress lowered in the plastic region. The assumption will be that the relation between σ_i and c_i for the biaxial case is the same as that between **O** (stress) and **E** (strain) in a one dimensional test.

In terms of the previous parameters this would mean as the temperature is increased the λ is increased (with an upper limit of $\lambda = 1$) and the yield stress, σ_s , is decreased. In the elastic region the modulus of elasticity would decrease. The effect of temperature on σ_s and $\boldsymbol{\varepsilon}$ is contained in the literature,²⁴ but the effect on hardening (λ) must be determined at the present time by extrapolation from one dimentional tests.^{18,19,20} In materials which are almost perfectly plastic ($\lambda = i$) at room temperature we can only assume that the total effect of elevated temperature will be to decrease the yield stress.

Keeping in mind the above concepts let us rewrite equation [19] as follows:

 $\frac{10110WS}{\frac{1}{2\lambda}} = \frac{\sqrt{3}(1-\lambda)}{2\lambda} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2\lambda} \frac{d\mu}{d\mu} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{d\mu} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{d\mu} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{d\mu} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{d\mu} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{d\mu} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{d\mu} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} + \frac{1}{3} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{d\mu}{\beta} \frac$

where Δ is the term in the bracket of the last integral in eq. [19]. This expression can be further rewritten as

 $\overline{\nabla} = \frac{\sqrt{3}(1-\lambda)}{\sigma_{s} \tan L} = \frac{\sqrt{3}(1-\lambda)}{2e_{s}(1-\lambda^{-1})} \left\{ \overline{I}_{i} \right\} + \lambda \left\{ \overline{V}_{i} \right\} - \lambda \sqrt{3} \pi e_{s}$ [19b]

where I denotes the sum of the $\overline{\sim}$ and $\overline{\beta}$ integrals and \checkmark corresponds to the Δ integral.

We need only compute the values of I and V₁ (which are both independent of λ) and the above expression gives us V for any λ . Thus in the plastic region the elevated temperature case can be obtained directly from the results of the room temperature case by assuming the appropriate values for $\langle \cdot, \sigma \rangle$ and λ . All three of these parameters can be extrapolated by fitting a bilinear curve to the one dimensional thermoplastic tests.

2. Extrapolation of the Bell Parabolic $Law^{19,20}$

In lieu of assuming a bilinear law one might extend the one dimensional Bell Law 19,20 which is

where β_{\bullet} is a universal constant (**ST.0 ***/**mm**²), **T** is the normal stress and **G** the strain; T is the temperature in degrees Kelvin and **T** is the melting point of the metal. It could be assumed that the same functional relationship holds between the octehedral shear stress and strain, i.e.

$$\sigma_i = \beta_0 \left(1 - \frac{T}{T_m} \right) \sqrt{\epsilon_i}$$

However in the absence of any biaxial tests we will consider here only the approximation given by the bilinear curve. At some late date either an extension to the Bell Law for the biaxial case or a modification of it will be studied further.

C. Impulse-energy relation

Let I be the impulse per unit mass applied to the shell. The impulse momentum relation for an elemental mass dm can be written: (only the lateral velocity m is being considered, u and m are being neglected)

$$ivdm = Idm$$
 [21]

where *m* is the lateral velocity imparted to the mass by the impulse. Thus

$$\vec{w} = I$$
 [22]

The Kinetic energy imparted to the shell is

$$= \int_{A} \pm g \pm i \cdot dA = \pm \int_{A} g \pm I \cdot dA$$
[23]

where ρ^{\pm} is the mass per unit area and dA is an elemental area. The impulse can wary over the surface. Therefore write the impulse as

$$I(x,g) = I_0 f(x,g)$$
^[24]

Thus from [21]

$$T = \frac{1}{2} \int_{A} f^{2}(x, y) dA \qquad [25]$$

Equating the initial kinetic energy to the energy of deformation approach by the shell the expression for the impulse per unit mass becomes:

-9-

$$I_{o} = \sqrt{\sqrt{\frac{2}{pt}\int_{A}f^{2}(x,y)dA}}$$
 [26]

The total impulse on the shell will then be

$$I_{t} = \int_{A} I_{0} p t f(x, y) dA = \int_{A} \sqrt{\frac{2pt}{\int_{A} f^{2}(x, y)} dA} \quad [27]$$

The impulse per unit area will be

$$E_{o}pt = \bigvee \bigvee \frac{2pt}{\int_{A} f^{2}(x,y) dA}$$
 [28]

If the impulse is uniform

$$f(x_{\gamma}) = 1$$
 [29]

and

$$I_{opt} = \sqrt{\frac{pt}{\pi aL}}$$
[30]

It should be mentioned that the expressions for the impulse hold when the shell has reached its final state of deformation and has come to rest and all the initial kinetic energy is used up in energy or work of deformation.

D. Approximation to energy flux delivered from explosion

The energy flux density (energy per unit area) that is directed toward the cylinder from the blast is a function of the charge weight and distance of the charge from the cylinder. It has been found^{3,25} that the energy flux for an underwater explosion can be written approximately as

where $\mathcal{E}_{\mathcal{F}}$ is the energy per unit area, C is a constant, W is the charge weight and R is the distance from the explosion to the target. Assuming a constant energy distribution over the cylinder the total energy available to do damage to the cylinder would be

$$\vec{E}_t = C \frac{W}{R^2} 2 \pi a L$$

where a is the cylinder radius and L is the length.

or

Using an energy balance this total energy can be equated to the work done by the internal forces during deformation of the cylinder (this work was denoted by V in the previous sections of the report) Thus

$$V = E_{t}$$

$$C \frac{W}{R^{2}} 2 \pi a L = V = \overline{V} \frac{\sigma_{s} ta L}{\sqrt{s}}$$

-10-

where V is the nondimensional energy function as given by [19b]. This function is computed later in the report for a variety of cases. Using this \overline{V} function together with experimental results on buckling and collapse of steel and aluminum cylinders as given by Schuman^{1,2} we could derive a value for C and thereby obtain a seim-empirical formula for obtaining the plastic deformation of cylinders for any charge weight and distance. Such a semi-empirical relation will be discussed later in the report,

- E. Approximate pressure dustribution and impulse delivered to shell from blast
 - 1. Pressure distribution

If one proposes to use a more exact approach such as the governing differential equations or variational principles in the plastic region for computing the response of the shell to the blast, the pressure distribution in space and time must be known over the entire cylinder. Approximate pressure results for overpressures less than 25 psi are given in the literature." Tests are currently being conducted at the Aberdeen Proving Ground² to verify these results. One such test result is illustrated in Fig. (10). Qualitatively the pressute time plots look similar to the plots that are obtained by employing the curves in the Nuclear Effects Handbook.²⁶ The Aberdeen Experiments The Aberdeen Experiments seem to show a finite duration of the positive phase whereas the results form the Handbook show an exponential decay of the pressure with time. A calculation of the pressure vs. time for the test case at three locations around the cylinder using the curves in the Nyglear Effects Handbook together with the plots of Baker and Schuman⁴ and the work of Goodman²⁹ is shown in Figure (11). It is plainly seen that there is no good agreement between the Handbook theory²⁰ and the experiment. This indeed points to the fact that many more pressure measurements and comparisons are in order.

2. Impulse distribution

Along with the pressures at various locations around the periphery the impulse was also measured by integrating the pressure time relation at the various points. For the test cylinder described above the impulse distribution was as shown below:

Angle 0 ⁰	90 ⁰	180 ⁰	240 [°]	300 ⁰	330 ⁰
Impulse 8 (psi-ms)	4	8	6	6	7

This indicates that the total impulse does not vary drastically from point to point around the periphery as was originally anticipated in earlier work when an exponentially decaying impulse was assumed.

-11-

F. Simplifications in the energy expression

The complete energy expression can be written

$$V = \int \left[\int_{0}^{e_{s}} \overline{\sigma_{i}} de_{i} + \int_{e_{s}}^{e_{i}} \overline{\sigma_{i}} de_{i} \right] d\Sigma \qquad [31]$$

$$= \int \int \int \left[\frac{Ee_{i}^{\mu}}{2(1-\lambda)} + E\lambda e_{s}e_{i} \right] a d\phi dx dz - \frac{E\lambda e_{s}^{2}}{2}\pi a Lt$$

For very thin shells undergoing very large plastic deformations $C_i >> C_i$ if $\lambda = 1$ (perfectly plastic material), then

$$\sqrt{\pi} \int_{0}^{L} \int_{\frac{\pi}{\sqrt{3}}}^{\frac{\pi}{2}} \frac{Ec_{s}}{\sqrt{3}} t \sqrt{\alpha(x,d)} a da da da$$
 [32]

For some physical cases W./a < < / , a/L << / SO that $\alpha \approx \left(\frac{M_{e}}{2}\right)^{2} f^{2}$

Thus

$$V = \frac{2\sigma_s t m_o L}{\sqrt{3}} \int f(x; \theta) d\theta dx' \qquad [33]$$

III. Elastic analysis

A. Buckling

A rather extensive study of elastic buckling of a cylindrical shell under nonuniform lateral pressure is given by Almroth." He represents the pressure on the shell by the relation

$$\rho(\psi) = \rho_0 + \rho_1 \cos \varphi \qquad [34]$$

The pressure at $\varphi = o$ is $(\varphi, \neq \gamma,)$. Almroth obtains the critical value of (p, + p) for buckling of the shell. The nonuniformity of the pressure is described by a parameter $\overline{\mathcal{P}}$ defined as

$$\bar{\rho} = \frac{p_{i}}{(p_{i} + p_{i})}$$
 [35]

He obtains a variety of critical load curves for $\mathcal{P} = \mathcal{O}, \mathcal{F}$; this is the case which will be considered here. These buckling curves are shown as solid lines in Figure 3. The yield load corresponding to a nonuniform pressure as given above with $\mathcal{P} = \mathcal{O}, \mathcal{I}$ will be considered in the next section. In figure 3 it was assumed that $E = 1000 \, 0_{\rm s}$, $\sigma_{\overline{c}}$ being the yield stress in pure tension.

For uniform loading the classical theory of buckling of cylindrical shells is presented by Timoshenko." It is found that the lateral pressure at which buckling under uniform loading will occur is given by the following relation:

$$(q_{c-})_{b} = \frac{Et}{a(1-y^{b})} \left[\frac{1-y^{2}}{(m^{2}-1)(1+\frac{m^{2}L^{2}}{n^{2}a^{2}})^{2}} + \frac{t^{2}}{(2a^{2}}(m^{2}-1+\frac{2m^{2}-1-y}{1+\frac{m^{2}L^{2}}{n^{2}a^{2}}}) \right]^{7} [36]$$

where \mathcal{N} is the number of full waves around the periphery of the shell. It has been found by Reynolds¹¹ that in lobar buckling such as this, the circumferential parameter \mathcal{N} approximately satisfies the relation

$$\frac{1}{1 + m^2 L^2 / m^2 a^2} \approx 1.23 \frac{\sqrt{at}}{L}$$
[37]

and that buckling will always occur with only one half wave along the length. In other words, if m denotes the number of axial half waves along the length, then m = 1 and n is determined from equation [37]. The factor 1.23 has to be adjusted so that n turns out as a whole number. Once n is determined then equation [36] will give the value of the buckling load for funiform loading.

B. Yield or collapse

Assume that the shell is thin and that membrane theory is adequate to describe the stress patterns in the shell. Assume also that the shell is of length 1 and is supported at each end. Take the origin or coordinates at the center of the shell as shown in Figure 4. The membrane forces are shown on the differential element in Figure 5.

If p(x, q) is the static load per unit area applied laterally to the shell then it follows from the basic membrane equations^{12,13} that

$$N_{q} = \alpha p(x, q)$$

$$N_{zq} = -\int_{a}^{L} \frac{\partial N_{q}}{\partial q} dx + f_{z}(q)$$

$$N_{x} = -\int_{a}^{L} \frac{\partial N_{zq}}{\partial q} + f_{z}(q)$$
[38]

where $f_{1}(q)$ and $f_{2}(q)$ are functions of q which are to be determined from the boundary conditions on N_{x} , N_{xq} , N_{q} . If some of the boundary conditions are given in terms of displacements then the following membrane equations in terms of displacements must be utilized:¹²

$$Etu = \int (N_{x} - v N_{q}) dx + f_{3}(q)$$

$$Etv = 2(1+v) \int N_{xq} dx - \frac{Et}{a} \int \frac{\partial y}{\partial q} dx + f_{4}(q)$$

$$Etw = a (Nq - v N_{x}) + Et \frac{\partial v}{\partial q}$$

$$[39]$$

where t is the shell thickness, E is the modulus of elasticity, u,v,w are the displacements (see Fig. 5) and $f_3(4)$, $f_4(4)$ are arbitrary functions to be determined from the boundary conditions.

Now assume that the pressure
$$p(x, q)$$
 can be represented as
 $p = p_{o}f(q)$, $f(q) = (1 + \frac{n}{p_{o}}craq)$
[40]

-13-

The I Partition

The solution will be obtained for the boundary conditions

$$U=0 \quad \text{at} \quad \chi=\pm \frac{L}{2} \qquad [41]$$

$$\forall \chi \neq = 0 \quad \text{af} \quad \chi=0 \quad \frac{L}{2} \quad \text{symmetry} \qquad [41]$$

By straight forward integration of equations [38] and [39] subject to boundary conditions [41] it is found that

$$N_{\varphi} = a p_{0} f(q)$$

$$N_{zq} = -p_{0} z f'(q)$$

$$N_{z} = \frac{p_{0} z^{2}}{a} f''(q) + v a p_{0} f(q) - \frac{p_{0} t^{2}}{a} f''(q)$$
[42]

in which

So at the center of the shell $\chi = 0$, q = 0

$$N_{\varphi} = \alpha(p_{o} + p_{i}) , N_{z} \varphi = 0$$

$$N_{z} = \mathcal{V}_{\alpha}(p_{o} + p_{i}) + \frac{L^{2}}{24\pi}P_{i} = \mathcal{V}_{\alpha}(p_{o} + p_{i}) + \frac{L^{2}}{14}(p_{o} + p_{i})\overline{j}$$
[43]

Now let $p = (p_0 + p_1)$ (the critical yield pressure at q = 0; corresponds to Admroth's calculations for buckling) [44]

Then

which

$$\mathcal{N}_{\sigma} = ap \qquad [45]$$

$$\mathcal{N}_{z} = \sqrt{a}p + \frac{L^{2}}{14}p \overline{p}$$

Using the Von Mises yield condition

$$N_{x}^{2} - N_{x}N_{\phi} + N_{\phi}^{2} + 3N_{x\phi}^{2} = \overline{U_{o}}^{2} t^{2}$$
 [46]

The critical pressure for yield at $\varkappa = \varphi = o$ is

$$(p)_{c} = \sigma_{s} \frac{1}{2} \sqrt{(1 - v + v^{2}) + \beta (\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2}) (2 - v) + \beta} (\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{2})^{2}}$$
[47]

$$(p)_{c} = \sigma_{s} \frac{2}{\rho_{t}} \frac{1}{\sqrt{79 - 63328(t/\rho)^{2} + 66696(t/\rho)^{4}}}$$
[48]

C. The criterion for buckling or yield

It is clear from Schuman's experiments¹² that both buckling and yield collapse can occur. The main problem is to be able to predict which type will take place. Once buckling or collapse has commenced the plastic deformation will take place in that particular pattern into which the failure has started. It should be made clear at this point that the collapse and buckling criteria are not to be used to approximate any of the dynamical parameters of the shell; they are to be used only to determine which type of failure will start. Once this is known then the plastic analysis as given in the previous sections will be employed to determine the plastic deflections and impulse values. Buckling or yield could be predicted by the above relations in the previous section by employing the following criterion:

If the buckling load is less than the yield load the shell should buckle; if the yield load is less than the buckling then the shell should collapse.

One might argue that we need a more accurate criterion such as the collapse load which has been defined as³⁰ the load for which the structure remains in equilibrium, but the displacements can increase indef finitely, geometry changes being ignored. As will be seen later, due to the nonlinearity of the displacements and due to possible hardening effects, we cannot determine a "collapse load" as such. A more positive criterion (as to whether the shell will collapse or buckle) such as the yield point load and elastic buckling load used above may seem over simplified, but it is, very subtlely, a more realistic outlook.

11 1 1847 2019 2014

- IV. Initial Plastic Analysis
 - A. General

If we attempt to define a static collapse load by equating the work done by the external forces to the work done by internal forces, the following relation would result

$$\int_{0}^{p} \int_{0}^{2\pi} p(z, q) w(z, q) a dz dq = V \text{ or } W = V$$

where W is the work done by the external load, p(x, d), during the deformation, w(x, d), and V is the work done by the internal forces during this deflection as defined previously in the report. Using this criterion let us attempt to define a collapse load for the cases of interest.

B. Axisymmetrical Collapse

Consider the axially symmetric lateral loading of a perfectly plastic shell subjected to both static and dynamic loading which is assumed uniform over the shell. The problem is to estimate the static collapse load and to determine the impulse-deflection relationship in the plastic region.

Shells under axially symmetric external load usually collapse with a deformation pattern resembling two frustrums of a cone with a hinge circle at the center of the cylinder as shown in Figure 6. Accord-ing to the sign convention used in this analysis *w* is positive inward. The work done by the internal forces in this deformation is

$$V = \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \sigma_{5} t 2\pi a \begin{cases} \sqrt{4} \left(\frac{4\sqrt{3}}{4}\right)^{4} - \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{4\sqrt{3}}{4n}\right)^{3} \frac{x}{4} + \left(\frac{4\sqrt{3}}{4n}\right)^{2} \frac{x}{4} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{4\sqrt{3}}{4n}\right)^{4} \frac{x}{4} + \frac{1}{2$$

Integrating, we obtain

$$V = \frac{4\pi \alpha G_{5}t}{\sqrt{3}} \left\{ \frac{L}{8} \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)^{3} a + \frac{3}{16} \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)^{2} a \operatorname{sink}^{-1} \frac{1}{\sqrt{3}} \right.$$

$$+ \frac{L}{2} \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)^{2} a \sqrt{\frac{L}{4} \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)^{4} + \frac{1}{2} \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)^{3} \frac{L}{2} + \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)^{2} \frac{L^{2}}{4a^{2}}}{\frac{L}{\sqrt{3}} \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)^{3} a \operatorname{sink}^{-1} \left(\frac{L}{L} + \left(\frac{M_{6}}{L_{h}}\right)\right) \right\}$$
(50)

Assume that the shell and deformation pattern are such that

 $w_{a}/L_{l_{12}} <<1$, $L_{l_{a}} >>1$ [51]

the energy expression reduces to

$$V = \frac{2\pi\sigma_c t}{\sqrt{3}} w_{oL}$$
 [52]

For static loading the work done by the external uniform lateral load is

$$W = 2\pi \alpha P_0 \frac{\omega_0 L_2}{2}$$
 [53]

Equating the internal energy absorbed by the shell to the work done by the external load it is found that

$$\mathcal{P}_{\bullet} = \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \frac{\sigma_{s} t}{a} ; \sigma_{s} = E \mathcal{E}_{s}$$
 [54]

Expression [54] implies that the load will not be dependent on the deflection throughout the plastic region. Therefore unis load will correspond to any deflection in the plastic region and can therefore be termed the static collapse load.

It is interesting to note that the load corresponding to yield in an elastic shell with ordinary hoop tension is

$$(\mathcal{P}_{\bullet})_{e} = \underbrace{\sigma_{\pm}}_{z}$$
 [55]

Thus [54] predicts that the static collapse load is about 15% higher than the load at which yielding will start. For shells in which 4/4 is not much greater than unity, higher order terms in the energy must be included. If second order terms in 4/4/4 are retained, the energy becomes

$$V = \frac{4\pi \alpha \sigma_{st}}{\sigma_{st}} \left(\frac{4\sigma_{st}}{2\alpha} + \frac{4\sigma_{st}^{2}}{4\alpha} \right)$$
 [56]

Therefore the static load-deflection relation in the plastic region will be $\mathcal{P}_{\bullet} = \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \left(1 + \frac{4}{\sqrt{3}} \frac{2}{\sqrt{3}} \right)$ [57]

The effect of the nonlinear terms is to stiffen the shell so that the plastic deflection for a given load will be definite value. As the deflection increases these nonlinear terms become more predominant and it is no longer possible to define a load at which the deflection increases indefinitely. Using relations [52] or [56] with [28] the impulse-deflection curve in the plastic region can be obtained. With equation [52] we obtain:

$$(I_{\bullet}t)^{2} = \frac{2\pi\sigma_{s}t}{\sqrt{3}} \sqrt{2} L \frac{pt}{\pi aL}$$
[58]

-16-

With [56] we obtain

 $(I_o pt)^* = \frac{4\pi a \, 0tt}{2a} \left(\frac{m c L}{2a} + \frac{4}{4} \frac{m c^2}{4a}\right) \frac{pt}{m L}$ [59] The static collapse load does not define collapse in a dynamic problem. In fact if the load is applied dynamically the actual magnitude of the load can be much greater than the static collapse load and still not result in plastic deformation. It is the load-time relation that is important and the impulse is a lumped parameter which essentially is a measure of the load time history.

C. Nonaxisymmetric buckling and collapse

If we compute the work done by the pressure during the deformation a linear function of the deflection will be obtained, i.e.

if $w = w_0 f(x, q)$ $W = w_0 \int_0^{x} \int_0^{x_0} p(x, q) f(x, q) a dx dq$

then

The work done (V) by internal forces is in general a nonlinear function of \mathcal{W}_{0} as we see from equation [19], [20] and the curves plotted in Fig. (8), (9). By equating the work done by the external pressure to the work done by internal forces an expression will result between the load \mathcal{P}_{0} and the deflection \mathcal{W}_{0} . It is therefore certainly not plausible to talk about a collapse load for large deflections. If a power series in terms of \mathcal{W}_{0} is fitted to $V = \mathcal{F}(\mathcal{W}_{0})$ then one of the terms will be linear in \mathcal{W}_{0} ; if all terms except the linear one are neglected then a collapse load could be defined in the same sense as in the axisymmetric case.

For the axisymmetric case we were able to define such a collapse load by neglecting the higher order terms in V. It was found that the collapse load was 15% higher than the load at which yield would start in the shell. If the buckling load is as close as 15% to the yield point load there is a possibility that we will predict the wrong pattern of deformation. In cases where the two loads are far apart (say 100% apart) we should be able to use the buckling-yield criterion to predict the correct pattern.

V. Post failure, nonaxisymmetric collapse and buckling

A. Collapse

The deflection pattern for collapse is shown in Figure 7 and can be written analytically as follows:

$$r(z,q) = a \cos q - \sqrt{a^2 - \frac{1}{2} \left[d_0 - \frac{d_0}{d_1} z \right]^2}$$
^[60]

Letting
$$\chi' = \chi'_{L}$$

 $w(\chi, d) = a \cos \phi - \sqrt{a^{2} - \frac{d}{\phi}} [1 - 2z']^{2}$ for $o < z' < \frac{1}{2}$
 $= a \cos \phi - \sqrt{a^{2} - \frac{d}{\phi}} [1 + 2z']^{2}$ for $-\frac{1}{2} < z' < 0$ [61]

where do is the width of the hinge line as shown in Figure 7. Using these deformation expressions and equation [33] the work done on the

shell in deforming it plastically in collapse can be written 1 . 1 . 1)

$$q_{i} = a_{i}^{-1} \frac{d_{i}(1-2z')}{d_{i}(1-2z')} = a_{i}^{-1} \frac{d_$$

TA

$$h_{i} = am^{-1} \frac{d_{0}(i-2z^{\prime})}{2a} for 0 < z^{\prime} < \frac{1}{2}; \quad q_{i} = am^{-1} \frac{d_{0}(i+2z^{\prime})}{2a} for -\frac{1}{2} < z^{\prime} < 0$$
 [63]

After some mathematical manipulation and substitution of

it is found that V can be written

$$V = \frac{20.2L}{\sqrt{3}} \frac{4a}{\sqrt{3}} \int (y - \sqrt{1 - y^2} - \sqrt{y^2} - \sqrt{y^$$

or

$$V = \frac{205 \pm LD}{\sqrt{3}} \frac{1}{d_{0}} \left[\frac{3}{4} \left(\frac{d_{0}}{B} \right)^{2} - \frac{3}{4} - \frac{3}{2} \frac{d_{0}}{B} \sqrt{1 - \left(\frac{d_{0}}{B} \right)^{2}} \right]; = \frac{1}{66}$$

$$D = 2\alpha$$

Now using the impulse equation [27] and assuming that

$$f(x, y) \equiv f(x, \varphi) = e^{-\beta \varphi}$$
^[67]

The relation between the impulse and the deformation can be written as $(assuming \beta = 2)$

$$I_{\pm} \approx 2 \pm LO \sqrt{K} \sqrt{\frac{3}{5}} \qquad [68]$$

$$K = \frac{1}{d_{0}} \left[\frac{3}{4} \left(\frac{d_{0}}{D} \right)^{2} - \frac{1}{4} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{d_{0}}{D} \sqrt{1 - \left(\frac{d_{0}}{D} \right)^{2}} \right]$$

The deflection is actually described by

B. Buckling

1. First approximation - continuous curve

For the post failure buckling region the circumferential parameter takes on great importance and the simplification given by equation [33] cannot be employed. Instead, the plastic work has to be computed from the more general integral expressions. We use equation [19] and assume a post failure deflection pattern of the form

Upon closer examination of the buckling failures it is seen that the ideal buckling pattern of a continuous cosine wave as defined above does not exactly describe the post failure deflection in all cases.

Possibly a more realistic pattern for some cases might be a series of hinges, the depth of which becomes smaller around the periphery as shown below:

in any logical the last of the second s



The number of such hinges could be determined by the number of elastic buckling lobes as described before. It is expected to do more work with such deformation patterns in the future.

C. Energy expression from numerical integration of the general integrals using first buckling approximation

The curves of $\sqrt{}$ are plotted in Figures 8 and 9 for buckling and collapse failure as a function of the deflection and the geometric parameters of the shell. The buckling curves were computed for the parameters $\gamma = 4$, A = 14. The values of \sim satisfying relation [37] were used in these calculations. It is seen that the collapse results using the simplified formula (equation [66]) compare well with the more exact curves shown in Figure 8 for, $2 < d_{0/D} < .6$

D. Variational principle and governing differential equation in plastic region

The principle of extremum potential energy can be applied if we are dealing with a deformation theory as is the case in this work. Green-berg³¹ writes this principle as follows:

$$\delta [U] = 0 \qquad [69]$$

$$U = \int \left(\int_{0}^{e_{i}} \sigma_{i} de_{i} \right) dv' - \int T_{i} u_{i} d\Sigma = V - W$$

where

4

The integral over \bigvee' is the potential energy or work done by internal forces during deformation and the integral over \leq is the work done by surface tractions.

If we extend the principle to the dynamic case then its extension can be written as Hamilton's Principle³²

$$\delta \int_{t,}^{t} [T - U] dt = 0$$

$$[70]$$

the kinetic energy

at any statement and and an and

It BOARD IS S. IT MANAGE

where $T = \frac{1}{2} \int A i u^2 dA$

M = mass per unit area of shell

dA = element of surface area

w = velocity normal to shell surface (the longitudinal and tangential inertia are being neglected)

The variation is taken just as in the elastic problem by Love.³² This problem is equivalent to the following problem in the calculus of variations:

Find the function $\mathcal{Y}^{(x)}$ which takes on a given value for x = aand x = b and which minimizes the definite integral

$$I = \int F(x, y, y') dx \qquad [71]$$

The result is that F must satisfy the Euler Equation

$$\frac{\partial F}{\partial y} - \frac{\partial f}{\partial z} \left(\frac{\partial F}{\partial y} \right) = 0$$
 [72]

In our case

Thus

$$T = \frac{1}{2} \int_{A} m \dot{w}^{*} dA = \frac{1}{2} \int_{A} m \dot{w}^{*}_{o} f^{*} (x, a) dA \qquad [74]$$

We fit a power series curve to \bigvee from results like the ones in Figs. (8) (9). Thus

$$V = [A + Bw_0 + Cw_0^2 + Dw_0^3 + - - -]$$
^[75]

and

$$N = \int p(x,d,t) \, w_0 \, f(x,q) \, dA$$

where p(x, q, t) is the pressure applied to the shell

This results in the following nonlinear differential equation in time for the determination of

$$\dot{w}_{o}\int u f^{2}(x, \phi) dA + [B + 2 (w_{o} + 3 D w_{o}^{3} - -] = \int \rho(x, \phi, \phi) f(x, \phi) dA$$
 [76]

This will be the governing differential equation for the loading regime. The initial conditions are

$$w_{0}(o) = \tilde{w}_{0}(o) = 0 \qquad [77]$$

This equation will be valid as long as the deflection increases and unloading has not yet started to occur. If it is assumed that the shell deformation increases to a maximum and has no elastic recovery then the maximum deflection determined from this equation will give the permanent

-20-

Based on careful study of the existing plasticity flow theories of today it is difficult for this author to see how the important complications such as nonlinearity in the strians and stress-strain law in addition to nonuniform dynamic loading can be included and result in a solvable problem. In such plastic dynamic biaxial stress problems this author sees very little hope for any but the deformation theories and the energy type procedure for actually getting reasonable answers in a reasonable time.

and the second second

entre Internet

e'

REFERENCES

- William J. Schuman, Jr., "The Response of Cylindrical Shells to External Blast Loading," Ballistic Research Laboratories, Aberdeen Proving Ground, BRL Memorandum Report No. 1461, March, 1963.
- 2. William J. Schuman, Jr., "The Response of Cylindrical Shells to External Blast Loading, Part II," Ballistic Research Laboratories, Aberdeen Proving Ground, BRL Memorandum Report No. 1560, May, 1964.
- 3. A. H. Keil, "The Response of Ships to Underwater Explosions," David Taylor Model Basin Report 1576, Nov., 1961 (Reprint of paper presented at Annual Meeting of Society of Naval Architects and Marine Engineers, 16-17 November, 1961.
- 4. T. H. H. Pian, "Dynamic Response of Thin Shell Structures," Plasticity, Proceedings of the Second Symposium on Naval Structural Mechanics, Pergamon Press, 1960, p. 443.
- 5. Iliouchine, "Plasticite (Translated from the original Russian into French), Edition Eyrolles, 1956, p. 98.
- 6. Love, "Mathematical Theory of Elasticity," Fourth Edition, Dover Publications, 1944, p. 529.
- 7. Fung, and Sechler, "Instability of Thin Elastic Shells," Proceedings of the First Symposium on Naval Structural Mech., 1958, p. 118.
- 8. B. O. Almroth, "Buckling of a Cylindrical Shell Subjected to Nonuniform External Pressure, "Journal of Applied Mechanics, Dec., 1962, p. 675.
- 9. S. Timoshenko, "Theory of Elastic Stability," McGraw Hill Book Company, 1936, First Edition, Eighth Impression.
- 10. Ibid, p. 450.
- 11. T. E. Reynolds, "Inelastic Lobar Buckling of Cylindrical Shells Under External Hydrostatic Pressure," David Taylor Model Basin Report 1392, August, 1960.

set. If we assume that elastic unloading occurs then the initial conditions for the elastic unloading regime can be determined from the solution of this equation. An elastic equation using the elastic potential energy can then be solved for the elastic recovery regime. A closer look at this approach to the problem will be given during the next several months. However, for the present time the energy approach as given in the next section will be used to approximate the plastic deformations.

VI. Practical use of the energy criterion

A. The energy criterion

Using the energy relations described in Section D earlier in this feport we arrived at the basic relation

$$C \frac{W}{R^2} 2 \pi a L = \overline{V} \frac{\sigma_s ta L}{\sqrt{s}}$$

where C is to be determined from experimental results. Using results for <u>collapse behavior</u> of steel shells we find that C \approx 16000 (where all units are in pounds and inches). A very rough expression governing the plastic behavior of steel shells in the collapse region is

$$V_c \approx 174,000 \stackrel{W}{\not\sim} \frac{1}{\not\sim} \frac{1}{\not\sim}$$
 [77]

- ----

B. Future work with the energy criterion

Since it has not as yet been determined how much hardening there is in the material and since there are some doubts about the true buckling post failure pattern, these items shall have to be determined more definitively in the near future before an adequate semi-empirical buckling formula can be obtained similar to the collapse formula above. Also more accurate collapse measurements will have to be taken in order to obtain a better collapse relation than above. More work is also in order to obtain a more accurate expression for the energy flux density.

VII. Discussion

The great advantage of the energy absorption method as described here and elsewhere in the literature^{3,4,14,15,16} is that many complications can be considered in the analysis and still result in a tractable problem. For example it is seen that we have considered here nonlinearity in the strains, strain hardening in the stress-strain law and nonuniform dynamic loading. This type of theory has one main disadvantage we have to assume a deflection pattern. However it must be realized that even in some of the more spohisticated plasticity theories assumptions on the pattern must also be made. 12. W. Flugge, "Stresses in Shells," Springer Verlag, 1962, pp. 108-110, 131.

A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERTY A REAL PROPERTY A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL PROPERT

- 13. V. V. Novozhilov, "The Theory of Thin Shells," Translated by P. G. Lowe, edited by J. R. M. Radok, P. Noordhoff, Ltd., Grongingen, The Netherlands, 1959, p. 99, 169.
- 14. Joshua E. Greenspon, "Elastic and Plastic Behavior of Cylindrical Shells Under Dynamic Loads Based on Energy Criteria," J G Engineering Research Associates, Contract No. DA-36-034-ORD-3081 RD with Ballistic Research Laboratories, Tech. Rep. No. 3, Feb., 1963.
- 15. Joshua E. Greenspon, "Collapse, Buckling and Post Failure of Cylindrical Shells," J G Engineering Research Associates, Contract No. DA-36-034-ORD-3081 RD with Ballistic Research Laboratories, Tech. Rep. No. 4, Dec., 1963.
- 16. Joshua E. Greenspon, "Post Failure Deflections of Cylindrical Shells Under Dynamic Lateral Loads," J G Engineering Research Associates, Contract No. DA-36-034-ORD-3081 RD with Ballistic Research Laboratories, Tech. Rep. No. 5, August, 1964.
- 17. J. E. Greenspon, "An Approximation to the Plastic Deformation of a Rectangular Plate Under Static Load with Design Applications," David Taylor Model Basin Report 440, June, 1955.
- 18. J. F. Alder and V. A. Phillips, "The Effect of Strain Rate and Temperature on the Resistance of Aluminum, Copper and Steel to Compression," Jour. Inst. Metals, 83, 1955, 80.
- 19. James F. Bell, Jour, Applied Physics, 34, 1, 134-141, 1963.
- 20. James F. Bell, Phil. Mag., 10, 103, 107-126, 1964.
- 21. W. Goldsmith, "Impact," Edward Arnold Publishers, London, 1960, p. 331-332.
- 22. J. S. Rinehart and J. Pearson, "Behavior of Metlas under Impulse Loads," Dover Publications, New Uork, 1965, p. 23.
- 23. "Plasticity," Proceedings of the Second Symposium on Naval Structural Mechanics, Pergamon Press, 1960. p. 121, 170, 369.
- 24. "Strength of Metal Aircraft Elements," ANC-5, March, 1955, Supt. of Documents, U. S Government Printing Office.
- 25. R. H. Cole, "Underwater Explosions," Dover Pub, New York, 1965, p. 239.
- 26. "The Effects of Nuclear Weapons," Revised Edition, Reprinted Feb., 1964, Supt. of Documents, U. S. Government Printing Office, p. 193.
- 27. Unpublished Data by W. O. Ewing, Ballistic Research Laboratories.

28. W. E. Baker and W. J. Schuman, Jr., "Air Blast Data for Correlation with Moving Airfoil Tests," Tech. Note No. 1421, Ballistic Research Laboratories, Aberdeen Proving Ground, August, 1961.

townships a

「「「「「「「」」」」

- 29. H. J. Goodman, "Compiled Free-Air Blast Data on Bare Spherical Pentolite," Report No. 1092, Ballistic Research Laboratories, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Eeb., 1960.
- 30. P. H. Hodge, Jr., "Plastic Analysis of Structures," McGraw Hill Book Co., Inc., 1959, p. 9.
- 31. H. J. Greenberg, "On the Variational Principles of Plasticity," ONR Contract N7onr - 358, Brown University, March, 1949, (DDC No. AD 55982).

32. Ref. 6, p. 166.



Fig. lb. Collapse

Fig. la. Buckling





-25-











5

•

Figure 4 Origin of Coordinates



14、香草的树

Figure 5 Shell Element Membrane Forces



Figure 6 Deformation Pattern of Shell for Axisymmetric Collapse



Figure 7 Deformation Pattern of Shell for Nonaxisymmetric Collapse





- 1 3M

.

.

Fig. 9c. Post Failure Collapse and Buckling Curves -32-



Fig. 9b Post Failure Collapse and Buckling Curves



Fig 9a. Post Failure Collapse and Buckling Curves





DOCUMENT CO (Security classification of title, body of abstract and index 1 ORIGINATIN G ACTIVITY (Corporate suther) J G Engineering Research Associates 3831 Menlo Drive Baltimore 15, Maryland 3 REPORT TITLE COLLAPSE, BUCKLING AND POST FAILURE BEH ELEVATED TEMPERATURE AND DYNAMIC LOADS 4 DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) 5 AUTHOR(5) (Last name. first name. in/(isl)) Greenspon, Joshua E. 6 REPORT DATE November 1965 8 CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d 10 AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION HOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimi 11 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13 AGSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of report.	NTROL DATA - Rong ennotation must be AVIOR OF CYLIN AVIOR OF CYLIN 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technica 9. OTHER REPORT ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro	AD entered when 2 • REPOIL Un 2 • GROUN NDRICAL S PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	the overall report is classified) AT SECURITY CLASSIFICATIO classified P SHELLS UNDER 7b NO OF REFS 32 MBER(S) NO. 6 other numbers that may be assigned other numbers that may be assigned VITY Research Laboratori pund, Maryland
(Security classification of title, body of abstract and index) 1 ORIGINATIN G ACTIVITY (Corporate suthor) J G Engineering Research Associates 3831 Menlo Drive Baltimore 15, Maryland 3 REPORT VITLE COLLAPSE, BUCKLING AND POST FAILURE BEN ELEVATED TEMPERATURE AND DYNAMIC LOADS 4 DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) 5 AUTHOR(5) (Lest name. first name. in/titel) Greenspon, Joshua E. 6 REPORT DATE November 1965 8 CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d 10 AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimi 11 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13 ABSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of report	 AVIOR OF CYLI: AVIOR OF CYLI: Total No of 42 ORIGINATOR'S F Technica: OTHER REPORT this report ted. S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro 	PAGES PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	the overall report is classified) RT SECURITY CLASSIFICATIO classified P SHELLS UNDER 7b NO OF REFS 32 NO. 6 other numbers that may be assid other numbers that may be assid VITY Research Laboratori pund, Maryland
J G Engineering Research Associates 3831 Menlo Drive Baltimore 15, Maryland S REPORT VITLE COLLAPSE, BUCKLING AND POST FAILURE BEH ELEVATED TEMPERATURE AND DYNAMIC LOADS 4 DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) 5 AUTHOR(5) (Lest name. first name. initial) Greenspon, Joshua E. 6 REPORT DATE November 1965 8 CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d 10 AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimit 11 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13 ABSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling sna report. The analytical details of repr	AVIOR OF CYLI 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technica 9. OTHER REPORT ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Br Aberdeen Pro	Un 2 6 GROUN NDRICAL S PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Groups	classified P SHELLS UNDER 7b NO OF REFS 32 MBER(S) NO. 6 other numbers that may be assis other numbers that may be assis VITY Research Laboratori pund, Maryland
3831 Menio Drive Baltimore 15, Maryland REPORT TITLE COLLAPSE, BUCKLING AND POST FAILURE BEI ELEVATED TEMPERATURE AND DYNAMIC LOADS DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) AUTHOR(5) (Lest name. first name. initial) Greenspon, Joshua E. REPORT DATE November 1965 CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d d o AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimi ' SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES ABSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of repr	AVIOR OF CYLI 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technica 9. OTHER REPORT ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro	PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	P SHELLS UNDER 7b NO OF REFS 32 IBER(S) NO. 6 other numbers that may be assid other numbers that may be assid vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
Baltimore 15, Maryland REPORT TITLE COLLAPSE, BUCKLING AND POST FAILURE BEI ELEVATED TEMPERATURE AND DYNAMIC LOADS DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) AUTHOR(5) (Lest name. first name. in/fiel) Greenspon, Joshua E. REPORT DATE November 1965 CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d O AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimi U SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES AABSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that co blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of repr	AVIOR OF CYLI 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technica 9. OTHER REPORT ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro	PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	SHELLS UNDER 7b NO OF REFS 32 IBE R(S) No. 6 other numbers that may be assis vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
COLLAPSE, BUCKLING AND POST FAILURE BEI ELEVATED TEMPERATURE AND DYNAMIC LOADS DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) AUTHOR(5) (Lest name. first name. initial) Greenspon, Joshua E. REPORT DATE November 1965 C CONTRACT ON GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) & PROJECT NO. C d O AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimi U SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES S ABSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of repr	AVIOR OF CYLI 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technica 9. OTHER REPORT bis remore) ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro	PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	SHELLS UNDER 7b NO OF REFS 32 BER(S) NO. 6 other numbers that may be assid vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
A DESCRIPTIVE NOTES (Type of report and inclusive dates) S AUTHOR(5) (Lest name. first name. in/fiel) Greenspon, Joshua E. Meront DATE November 1965 C CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) Distribution of this document is unlimited C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technical 9. OTHER REPORT this report) ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro 	PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	7b NO OF REFS 32 NO. 6 other numbers that may be assid vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
S AUTHOR(S) (Lest name. first name. initial) Greenspon, Joshua E. S REPORT DATE November 1965 S CONTRACT OR GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d. 10 AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimit IT SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of repr	 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technica 9. OTHER REPORT this report) ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro 	PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	7b NO OF REFS 32 NO. 6 other numbers that may be assid vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
Greenspon, Joshua E. REPORT DATE November 1965 CONTRACT OF GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) PROJECT NO. C d IN AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimit U SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES Distribution of this document is unlimit U SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES Distribution of this document is described of a number of the second the periphent along the length. The collapse is described type of failure will depend upon the generation of the second the periphent along the length. The collapse is described from an elastic stress and buckling and report. The analytical details of repr	 7. TOTAL NO OF 42 9. ORIGINATOR'S F Technical 9. OTHER REPORT this report) ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro 	PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	7b NO OF REFS 32 IBER(S) No. 6 other numbers that may be assid vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
November 1965 CONTRACT ON GRANT NO. DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) PROJECT NO. C d 10 AVAILABILITY/LIMITATION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimined 11 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES 13 ABSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of far The buckling type of failure is described of a number of lobes around the periphed along the length. The collapse is described of failure will depend upon the ger from an elastic stress and buckling and report. The analytical details of repr	 TOTAL NO OF 42 ORIGINATOR'S F Technica OTHER REPORT this report) ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro 	PAGES REPORT NUM 1 Report T NO(S) (Any LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	7b NO OF REFS 32 NO. 6 other numbers that may be assis vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d Distribution of this document is unlimit US AUSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the peripher along the length. The collapse is describted type of failure will depend upon the ger from an elastic stress and buckling and report. The analytical details of repr	 9. ORIGINATOR'S P Technica 9. OTHER REPORT this report) ted. 12 SPONSORING MILL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro 	LITARY ACTIV allistic oving Gro	No. 6 other numbers that may be assid vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
DA-18-001-AMC-707(X) b PROJECT NO. c d Distribution of this document is unlimit supplementary notes Distribution of this document is unlimit Distribution of the document is unlimit Distribution of	Technica 35 OTHER REPORT ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro	I Report	No. 6 other numbers that may be assid vity Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
d Distribution of this document is unlimit USANSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of far The buckling type of failure is describe of a number of lobes around the peripher along the length. The collapse is described type of failure will depend upon the ger from an elastic stress and buckling anareport. The analytical details of repr	96 OTHER REPORT ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro	LITARY ACTI allistic oving Gro	other numbers that may be assis vity Research Laboratori ound, Maryland
d Distribution of this document is unlimi USAUTION NOTICES Distribution of this document is unlimi USUPPLEMENTARY NOTES Distribution of this documentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of repr	ted. 12 SPONSORING MIL U.S. Army Ba Aberdeen Pro	allistic oving Gro	VITY Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
Distribution of this document is unlimi I SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES ABSTRACT It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of repr	ted. 12 sponsoring Mil U.S. Army Br Aberdeen Pro	allistic oving Gro	VITY Research Laboratori bund, Maryland
It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling ana report. The analytical details of repr		oving ore	
It has been shown experimentally that of blast will go into two main types of fa The buckling type of failure is describ of a number of lobes around the periphe along the length. The collapse is desc type of failure will depend upon the ge from an elastic stress and buckling and report. The analytical details of repr			
method for calculating the energy absor normal and elevated temperature conditi completely in this report. In addition the problem a deformation type variatio governing nonlinear differential equati plastic region. The biaxial stress str elevated temperature cases is an elusti	ylindrical she ilure. These ed by a deform ry of the she ribed by a str ometry of the lysis of the s esenting the of bed and the re ons due to a g to energy and nal principle on for the tin ain law used for c linear harde	ells sub are buck mation pa ll and on raight fa shell as deformati esulting given los d impulse is emplo me depend for both ening law	jected to side on ai kling and collapse. attern which consist he half wave length ailure hinge. The hd can be predicted discussed in this ion patterns and the deflection under ading is described e methods of solving byed to set up the dent deflection in t the normal and
Of greatest importance in the report is work done by internal forces in the she This work or energy can be used to comp deformation; it can be used to compute to the shell (assuming all of it goes i to compute static load for a given defo criterion itself.	the computation the for very late the the impulse the deformation to plastic de	ion of th arge plas se to giv on for a eformatic t can be	ne energy absorbed c stic deformations. ve a prescribed given energy input on); it can be used

4 N

Security Classification

1

Unclassified

Security Classification

14								
KEY WORDS			IK A		1K B	[L''		
		ROLE	• T •	ROLE	W T	HOLE	ψT	
S'.ell Response Flastic Failure of Shells Shell Dynamics Failure Criterion of Shells								
INST	RUCTIONS							
1. ORIGINATING ACTIVITY: Enter the name and address of the contractor, subcontractor, grantee, Department of De- fense activity or other organization (corporate author) issuing the report.	10. AVAI itations of imposed t	LABILIT on further by securit	Y/LIMIT dissemin y classif	ATION N ation of t ication, u	OTICES: he report	Enter an , other thin ndard stat	ny lim- an those lements	
2a. REPORT SECURITY CLASSIFICATION: Enter the over- all security classification of the report. Indicate whether "Restricted Deta" is included. Marking is to be in accord-	(1)	 (1) "Qualified requesters may obtain copies of this report from DDC." 					15	
ance with appropriate security regulations.	(2) "Poreign announcement and dissemination of this report by DDC is not authorized."							
2b. GROUP: Automatic downgrading is specified in DoD Di- rective 5200.10 and Armed Forces Industrial Manual. Enter the group number. Also, when applicable, show that optional markings have been used for Group 3 and Group 4 as author- ized.	(3)	 (3) "U. S. Government agencies may obtain copies o this report directly from DDC. Other qualified DI users shall request through 					a of J DDC	
3. REPORT TITLE: Enter the complete report title in all capital letters. Titles in all cases should be unclassified. If a meaningful title cannot be selected without classifica- tion, show title classification in all capitals in parenthesis immediately following the title.	(4) "U. S. mulitary agencies may obtain copies of this report directly from DDC. Other qualified users shall request through						this rs	
4. DESCRIPTIVE NOTES: If appropriate, enter the type of report, e.g., interim, progress, summary, annual, or final. Give the inclusive dates when a specific reporting period is covered.	(5) "All distribution of this report is controlled. Qu ified DDC users shall request through					Qual''		
5. AUTHOR(S): Enter the name(s) of author(s) as shown on or in the report. Enter last name, first name, middle initial. If military, show rank and branch of service. The name of the principal author is an absolute minimum requirement.	If the report has been furnished to the Office of Technical Services, Department of Commerce, for sale to the public, indi- cate this fact and enter the price, if known. 11. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES: Use for additional explana- tory potes.							
6. REPORT DATE: Enter the date of the report as day, month, year, or month, year. If more than one date appears on the report, use date of publication.	12. SPO the depart	NSORING	MILITAI		VITY: E boratory i	nter the n sponsorin	ame of g (pay-	
7a. TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES: The total page count should follow normal pagination procedures, i.e., enter the number of pages containing information.	13 ABSTRACT Enter an abstract giving a brief and summary of the document indicative of the report, even it may also appare alsowhere in the body of the techn			ief and fa port, even	ictual though			
7b. NUMBER OF REFERENCES: Enter the total number of references cited in the report.	it may also appear elsewhere in the body of the technical re- port. If additional space is required, a continuation sheet shall be attached.				heet			
8. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER: If appropriate, enter the applicable number of the contract or grant under which the report was written.	It is highly desirable that the abstract of classified re- ports be unclassified. Each paragraph of the abstract shall end with an indication of the military security classification of the information in the paragraph represented as (TS) (S)				d re- shall cation i), (S).			
 86, 8c, & 8d. PROJECT NUMBER: Enter the appropriate military department identification, such as project number, subproject number, system numbers, task number, etc. 9a. ORIGINATOR'S REPORT NUMBER(S): Enter the official report number by which the document will be identified and controlled by the originating activity. This number must be unnue to this second. 		 (C), or (U) There is no limitation on the length of the abstract. However, the suggested length is from 150 to 225 words. 14. KEY WORDS. Key words are technically meaningful terms or short phrases that characterize a report and may be used as index entries for cataloging the report. Key words must be 						
								9b. OTHER REPORT NUMBER(S): If the report has been assigned any other report numbers (either by the originator or by the sponsor), also enter this number(s). (key wo contex